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OFFICE OF COUNTY MAYOR

Department of Finance * 400 Main Street, Suite 630, Knoxville, TN 37902

November 21, 2005

To the Board of Knox County Commissioners and the Citizens of Knox County, Tennessee:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Knox County, Tennessee (the County) for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the
data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentations, including all disclosures, rests with the
County. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed information is accurate in all material
respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various funds and account groups of the County and its component units. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County's activities have been
included.

The mtroductory section includes this transmittal letter, the County's organization chart, and a list of
principal officials. The financial section includes Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A), the
basic government-wide and fund financial statements and notes to the financial statements. The
Financial Section also includes Required Supplementary Information and other supplemental
information. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis. GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of MD&A. The reader
is directed to the MD&A for a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the financial statements.
This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
The Knox County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent
auditors.

The County is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act of 1984 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133, Audits of State
and Local Governments. Information related to this single audit, including schedules of federal
financial assistance, findings and recommendations, and auditor's reports on the internal control
structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, is included in a separately issued report.

The fmancial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds and the Primary Government (i.c.,
the County) as well as its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the
primary government is financially accountable. Component units are discretely presented in separate
columns in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the
primary government and to differentiate their financial position, results of operations, and cash flows
from those of the primary government. The Knox County Board of Education (the Board), Knox
County Emergency Communications District (the District), and the Knox County Railroad Authority
(KCRA) are reported as discretely presented component units.

ph 865.215.2350 ¢ fax 865.215.2352
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The County and its Component Units provide a full range of services including, but not limited to,
the construction and maintenance of highways, streets and infrastructure, public health and welfare,
police protection, emergency telephone services, elementary and secondary education, community
services, sanitation services, and recreational and cultural events. Because of the close relationship
between the County and the Board and the fact the Board does not issue financial statements
separate from those of the County, many of the supplemental schedules and other financial
information have been consolidated to more properly reflect the joint activities of the County and the
Board.

GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE

The County has operated under a County Mayor/County Commission form of government since
September 1, 1980, and has been under a Home Rule Charter (Charter) since September 1, 1990.
Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in the County Mayor (the executive branch of the
County) and the County Commission (the legislative branch of the County). The County
Commission is responsible for, among other things, passing ordinances, adopting the budget and
appointing committees. The County Mayor, elected at-large for a four-year term, is responsible for
carrying out the policies and ordinances of the County Commission, overseeing the day-to-day
operations of the government and appointing the heads of many of the County's departments.

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY MAYOR

Fiscal year 2005 was another good year in the first term of County Mayor Mike Ragsdale. Mike
Ragsdale ran unopposed for the office in both the primary and general elections. In his initial
year, he worked closely with the department heads and elected officials to “hit the ground
running” to provide the highest quality County services and provision of the required
infrastructure to support continuous improvement. This section of this document will review
some of the successes of Knox County office and provide a summary of Mr. Ragsdale’s vision
for the future.

The overall greenway efforts within the
Department of Parks and Recreation are
to be celebrated. We have added nine
new greenways trails stretching across all
parts of Knox County. That includes
eight-plus miles of paved trails and
fourteen-plus miles of natural surface.
We have negotiated a long-term lease
with the State to keep House Mountain
Natural area open and to transfer House
Mountain's operation to Knox County.
All told, we have acquired 557 acres of
park land and added 24 new sports fields.
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In our engineering and public works
department, we have paved nearly 800 miles
of road in the county and striped over 600
miles. We have an adopt-a-highway program
in place and have restructured our litter grant
program. We constructed the Solway Green
Waste Recycling facility, enabling the
diversion of over 15,000 tons of tree and yard
waste from area landfills and converted the
waste to mulch.

Solway Recycling Center

We have rebuilt and remodeled John Sevier Convenience Center, constructed a facility at Forks of
the Rivers that handles household garbage, yard waste and scrap tires. We are also in the process
of relocating and modernizing the Halls Convenience Center.

We have completed many road projects and continue to look forward to many improvements.

The County has an effective storm water management program, and we now have a traffic-calming
program.

Our  library  system has been
strengthened both by technological
improvements and the construction of
three new replacement libraries and two
new branch libraries. We have opened
an $18 million East Tennessee History
Center. This new addition, which will
connect to the Custom House,

e

which will allow for needed expansion space and will preserve and display our past for future
generations. The East Tennessee History Center’s collection also benefited from a one-time
appropriation that allowed the Historical Society to acquire at auction significant Knox County
artifacts from an East Knox County estate.

Our Health Department has overseen a bioterrorism readiness exercise as well as a countywide flu
shot initiative to mitigate the effects on Knox County of the nationwide flu vaccine shortage. The
entire department stepped up and answered the call to help Knox Countians. The Health
Department continues to deliver necessary services to those who need it the most in a very efficient
manner.  The Health Department has encouraged and supported the development of a
comprehensive school health program.
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Knox Countians can be very proud of our community’s efforts for its animal population. Through
the leadership of the Health Department and a positive working relationship with the City of
Knoxville as well as substantial private contributions — 2004 saw the opening of a new Animal
Center as an example of our community coming together to meet a need. The Young-Williams
Animal Center is a model people come from around the country to see.

We have vastly expanded the use of computers in
County Offices. We have standardized software
countywide and increased technology training for
all county employees. Satellite offices in County
Government have been networked. Through a
strong interactive Web presence, we have improved
citizens’ access to County Officials and important
information, and citizens can now have Internet
access to all kinds of information.

Our employees are better trained and informed. We have a
County newsletter published regularly each quarter, our
employees participate in an annual health and benefits fair,
and we have initiated the Bright Start Wellness Program.

We have developed a Supplier Diversity Program focusing
on assuring equal access in contracting, have implemented a
procurement card program, and have returned over $2
million in revenue back to the County through surplus
property disposal.

We have committed over one million dollars toward the Beck Cultural Center recognizing its
importance in our history and our future. We have been able to contribute to many local
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community agencies like Public TV of East Tennessee, Senior Citizens Home Assistance,
Technology 2020, Second Harvest Food Bank, the Volunteer Ministry Center, the Interfaith
Health Clinic and many others who make a difference for Knox County every day. Two
$1,500,000 grants were instrumental in helping toward the renovation of one of Knox County’s
treasures . . . the Historic Tennessee Theatre.

Through the continued efforts of the
Development Corporation (TDC) we have
seen the arrival of more businesses to Knox
County each year. Since 1994, the
Development Corporation has sold over
$14.4 million in industrial land within its
parks and assisted in the sale of an additional
$6.8 million of land sales around the County.
TDC has provided $7.1 million in incentives
to companies resulting in over $300 million
of private investment and 1,400 new, high
wage jobs. In 1994, WestBridge had only
two companies located in it representing a
total of 190 jobs. Today there are only 35
available acres left and there are now over 1,400 employees at work in companies located in the
park. As a founding partner of the National Transportation Research Center (NTRC) the
Development Corporation provided discounted land upon which the NTRC has located a
multimillion-dollar research facility that is bringing technology out of the lab and translating it
into new business opportunities in this community. This is the first facility of its kind to be built
outside the Oak Ridge reservation.

Generations of Knox County residents yet to come will be able to enjoy the brilliant beauty of our
new nature refuge, Seven Islands. It is a wonderful legacy for us to leave to our community. What
we will be able to offer our citizens through the educational and conservation activities planned for
the refuge as well as the host of passive recreational opportunities that will be pursued there will
make it a special spot for years to come.

Going Forward
(excerpts from Mike Ragsdale’s inaugural speech)

Throughout our campaign as | spoke about the future of Knox County and the promise that is
ours to capture, the point I made was, “Now is the time.” For more than a year, I’ve traveled
form one end of this county to the other. [I’ve visited with people in their homes, their
neighborhoods and their place of business. 1’ve listened and I’ve learned. You’ve helped me
chart a course. And now we are going to follow it through.

We are going to create new, better jobs for current and future generations of Knox Countians.
We should have an economic results program that is the best in the Southeastern United States.
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Each of us want our children and our grandchildren to go to great schools. It is time that we
made our educational priority the future of our 52,000 Knox County school children. Let’s
strive to make each and every Knox County school a great school.

We have an obligation to America’s greatest generation, our senior citizens. We are going to
focus on their healthcare, housing, nutritional and recreational needs to make certain no senior in
our community is overlooked, forgotten or left behind.

And we are going to work to make your local government better; every single day. Whether it’s
parks and recreation, public libraries, children’s services or the proper spending of your tax
dollars, we are going to constantly look for ways to serve you better.

These are things that can happen. These are things that should happen. And, with your help
these are things that will happen and the time is now.

To the people of Knox County, I say again that this administration will be one of decisions, one
of action, one of results. You deserve it. To the leadership and people of our neighboring
counties, | say you will find in me a friend who wants to work with you because what is good for
our region is good for Knox County.

Briefly, let me set forth three things that will be paramount in our administration.

Number one, cooperation over conflict. Let’s find common ground. Identifying problems is
far easier than solving them. What we need- what the people of Knox County want- are
solutions. Let’s give the people of Knox County what they want. Let’s give them solutions.
Let’s do it together.

Number two, we’ll be active, not passive. Our administration will constantly be probing,
thinking, asking- and acting. We’re ready for it. We’re a big county. We’re a county filled with
people who know how to get things done. Knowing that is one thing. Taking advantage of it is
another. We’re going to be active. We’re going to make things happen. We’re going to move.
And the time is now.

Number three, results over rhetoric. Results. They are the benchmark by which this
administration will measure itself. 1 could talk all day about the results we hope to achieve.
Let’s save that. Let’s achieve big things, then talk about them.

In the aftermath of the grim and terrible day of September 11, 2001, we learned something about
America and about ourselves. We have seen daily examples of our country's unmatched strength
and compassion. Nowhere is this more true than in our home of east Tennessee. The tragedy of
September 11" was a moment around which Americans of all colors, all political beliefs, all
points of the compass, rallied, drawing strength from each other.
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President George W. Bush has called on all of us to show our resolve in this dangerous world,
and be the best Americans we can be. Let’s look to our neighborhoods, our workplaces, and our
families and resolve together to be the best Knox County we can be.

If we do that, we will make our community stronger and America stronger.....this administration
begins with confidence, with optimism, and with determination. In the future, I hope that people
will look at this as a moment Knox County stopped asking itself, “Can we?” and started to say,
“We can.” And this is the message | leave with you. Together we can. And the time is now.

FISCAL YEAR 2005 - MAJOR INITIATIVES

Throughout the year, the County and the Board have been involved in a variety of projects. These
projects reflect the County’s continuing commitment to its stated mission:

“Delivering essential services to Knox County citizens, while building the economic base and

related infrastructure needed to be competitive in the 21st century.”
Knox County Mission Statement

KNOX COUNTY’S MAYOR
Jflichael R, Ragsdale

Major Initiatives

When | first decided to run for Knox County Mayor, | campaigned on four goals to make our
community better: Senior Citizens, Better Schools, Economic Development and Making
Government Better Everyday. With these goals in mind, I have proposed an ambitious budget for
Knox County. This budget will allow us to move forward and make Knox County a great
American community. | believe this budget is a crucial turning point for our community. I want
you to know where we’ve been and where we’re going in Knox County since I’ve taken office.
Here are some of our achievements and goals for you to see...

Senior Citizens

e Veteran’s Nursing Home slated to open in 2006 on Knox County property with $6
million of Knox County capital invested.

e Opening 2 new senior centers and additions to another senior center

e Learning from consensus based on Senior Summits, expanding seniors services by using
No Senior Left Behind as our roadmap for planning
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Great Schools

e Every School A Great School Foundation will generate $31 million in funding to
improve learning from birth to kindergarten focusing on an early career path for middle
school children, and improving teacher compensation in difficult to staff schools

e 22 new school projects over the next 5 years — including a NEW high school!

e Imagination Library to be implemented in Knox County providing every child from birth
until they reach Kindergarten a book a month, at no cost to the child

e Expanding READ WITH ME- our a national award winning volunteer program that will
place one volunteer in every 1st and 2nd grade classroom each week to help students read
on grade level

e Economic Results Working on JOBS NOW! A campaign to create 35,000 new regional
jobs in 5 years

e Knox County Technology and Jobs Fund will establish a loan pool for technology based
companies relocating or expanding in our county

e Enterprise Resource Planning will use technology to provide more customer friendly
services instead of additional employees

Economic Results

e Working on JOBS NOW! A campaign to create 35,000 new regional jobs in 5 years

e Knox County Technology and Jobs Fund will establish a loan pool for technology based
companies relocating or expanding in our county

e Enterprise Resource Planning will use technology to provide more customer friendly
services instead of additional employees

What We’ve Implemented:

Senior Citizens

e Four successful Senior Summits with over 300 seniors in attendance
e Developed No Senior Left Behind initiative
e Adding Senior facilities to the County

Great Schools

e Incorporated school telecommunications into the County contract, saving $1 million over
a 7 year period in the school budget

e Merging of School and County Payroll Departments in 2005 saving $700,000 in the
school’s annual budget

e Establishing the Great Schools Partnership to enhance the education process and outputs
in new and creative ways
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Better Government

e Combined and eliminated job duties through efficiencies and outsourced some non-
mission critical functions, such as printing, resulting in the elimination of over 100
fulltime positions

e Restructured the Probation and Pretrial Release Program saving tax payer money in
pretrial release services and increased revenue from probation fees by 400%

e Using low risk inmate labor to mow and clean up parks saving more than $100,000 a year

e Privatized John Tarleton Home - saving $2 million in 5 years

e Received over $77 million in Federal grant funding over the past two years

Economic Results

Established a Payment In Lieu of Taxes program, which will create 600 new jobs and generate
$94 million in capital investment.

Legislative Initiatives

Impact of State Funding: Knox County, like the other 94 county governments in Tennessee,
receives significant support from state-shared revenues -- mainly in the form of education and
highway dollars. Because of this dependence, the legislative activities of the Tennessee General
Assembly are carefully monitored. Thanks to the continuing leadership of our Governor, the
State again passed a responsible, balanced budget. We at the local level are thankful for the
fiscal responsibility demonstrated by the State Budget. The rating agencies have recognized
these positive trends toward financial responsibility enabling the State to embark on the path
toward regaining its “triple AAA” bond rating, as has been our tradition for a long time. A
healthy State budget means more stable and predictable revenues for all cities and counties.

The County’s response to the recent uncertainty at the State level and the national economic
slowdown post 9/11/01 has been well served. The County has continued to be conservative in
predicting revenues, and will remain so. The County has “gone the extra mile” to be prepared in
case the State decided to “pass its problems to the local governments.” With that, the County
has “weathered the storm,” and maintained its traditionally strong reserves, continued to budget
conservatively and to be prepared for the next “rainy day.”

Capital Improvement Initiatives

As evidence of the County’s commitment to build the facilities necessary to serve the citizens of
Knox County and promote economic development within the County and region, the County
Commission adopted the Knox County Capital Improvement Plan. At the recommendation of the
County Mayor, the five-year capital plan represents a road map of anticipated major capital projects.
It does not represent appropriations and is subject to annual revisions or modifications. These
individual projects will be primarily funded through general obligation bonded debt.
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During the year, the County and the Board allocated significant resources in the following major
construction/renovation projects in accordance with the County’s Capital Plan:

General Construction/Renovation: Road Construction/Improvements:
Veterans’ Nursing Home Karns Connector
Burlington Branch Library Various Stormwater Improvements
Halls Senior Center Dry Gap Pike
South Knox Senior Center Ball Camp Pike
Corryton Senior Center Tazewell Pike
Business Parks for Economic Development (4) Parkside Drive
Many Parks and Greenways Improvements Westland Drive

School Construction/Renovation:

New High School Pond Gap Elementary

Cedar Bluff K-5 New Hopewell/Gap Creek
Gibbs Elementary Inskip Elementary

Powell Middle Roofing and HVAC upgrades
Ball Camp K-5 renovation/addition Carter Elementary

The following summarizes the capital improvement plan net of estimated allocations for project
schedule variances (amounts expressed in thousands):

Project Description FY05-06 FYO06-07 FYO07-08 FYO08-09 FY09-10 TOTAL
Libraries $ 1550 $ 200|$ 200 |$ 200| $ 2200|% 4,350
New High School 20,000 - - - - 20,000
Parks & Recreation 4,905 1,500 1,225 755 745 9,130
Engineering & Public Works 9,999 9,994 9,999 9,980 9,920 49,892
Economic Development 3,375 5,500 3,750 3,750 - 16,375
Justice Facility — Law Enforcement 2,500 11,000 - - - 13,500
Schools 27,000 29,000 31,000 13,000 20,500 | 120,500
Other 16,815 9,573 9,687 10,315 4,635 51,025
Other Funding (9,144) (7,767) (1,861) - - (18,772)
Total — Bond Funding $ 77,000 $ 59,000 $ 54,000 $ 38,000 $ 38,000 | $266,000

B Public Library
OParks & Recreation

Five Year Capital Plan

(In Thousands of Dollars) OEngineering/ Public Works
40,000 B Economic Development
OJustice Facilities
20,000 B Schools
OOther

FYoe  FYO07  FY08 FYO09  FY10 B New High School
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Other Selected Initiatives

Sales and Hall Tax Audits: The County continued its initiative to study of sales and Hall taxes
reported to the State by area businesses and individuals. As a result of the study, the County
again received a one-time gain of about $1 million from Sales and Hall Taxes incorrectly being
credited to other jurisdictions. The County will continue to work with the State to ensure future
taxes are appropriately credited to the County. Future benefits are not expected to be as great in
this year, but the County is committed to ensure all its revenues are pursued appropriately.

LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

L] i.?. |
(T ]S
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County
The County is the third most populated county in the State of Tennessee. Located in middle Eastern
Tennessee at the head waters of the Tennessee River, it is the hub of the areas of East Tennessee,
Southeast Kentucky, Southwest Virginia and Western North Carolina. This area encompasses over
two million people. As of the 2000 census, 382,032 citizens reside within the total land area of
approximately 526 square miles that make up Knox County. Knoxville, the County seat, is about 50
miles west of the North Carolina state line.

The City of Knoxville’s population in the 2000 census is 173,890 - it is the largest incorporated
municipality in the County. The 2000 census also reports that Farragut, the only other municipality
in the County, has a population of 17,720. Knoxville has a land area of approximately 93 square
miles within its corporate limits and is located on the Tennessee River near the geographic center of
East Tennessee.

Manufacturing and Commerce

Located in the northeastern portion of the State, the County, along with Anderson, Blount, Loudon,
Sevier, and Union counties, is part of the Knoxville Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). Because
of its central location in the eastern United States, the County metropolitan area serves thousands of
industrial and commercial customers in a concentrated eight-state area. It is within 500 miles of
approximately one-third of the population of the United States. For many years the County has been
known as one of the South's leading wholesale markets. Based on the 1998 census, there are more
than 950 wholesale distribution houses, 1,980 retail establishments, and over 5,000 service
industries, located in the County.
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The area is the trade center for a 42-county region in East Tennessee, Kentucky, Virginia and North
Carolina, which serves over two million people. It also is the cultural, tourist and professional center
for this region.

Manufacturing firms in the MSA produce everything from shoulder pads for professional football
teams to medical devices, electronic components, chemicals, manufactured housing, apparel, and
automobile parts. Of the 889 manufacturing firms in the MSA, over half (476) are in Knox County.

Industrial Investment

The County’s business park activity continues. So much so, that the County’s five-year Capital
Improvement Plan included significant investments in new land to meet the growing demand for
land available for business location and expansion. With the Oak Ridge National Lab, the under
construction Spallation Neutron Project, Tennessee Valley Authority Headquarters, the University
of Tennessee so close, Knox County offers premiere location opportunities for hi-technology and
precision manufacturing firms. The anchor of this park is the 80,000 square foot National
Transportation Center, which opened in the late fall of 2000. The County continued to show its
vibrancy with four new businesses adding at least 665 new jobs to our community. In the Knox
County region, there were 9 new businesses and 86 expansions adding over 1,641 new jobs and
$566 million in new investments in 2002. Plans are underway to extend one of EastBridge’s roads
which, when complete, will open up an additional 300 acres of industrial property. The County now
offers Westbridge, Eastbridge, Pellissippi Corporate Center, Center Point, 1-640 Business Park and
the Fairview Technology Center as ready for new business to come to Knox County as well as for
our own to expand and grow. This is really an exciting time for Knox County’s future!

Commercial Development

Four regional shopping malls, six major chain department stores, and a number of shopping centers
and factory outlets meet the retail needs of Knox County citizens and visitors. Traditionally, Knox
County accounts for more than 60% of the retail sales and economic activity of the MSA. Knox
County continues as a regional economic leader. Retail sales grew at a rate of 5% between 2003 and
2004 as represented in the following graph:

RETAIL SALES

(in thousands)

$8,000,000+

$6,000,000+

$4,000,000 -

$2,000,000¢ - OKnox County
$0 b T T

1995
1996
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2001
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Employment Information

The diversification of the County’s labor force has been credited as the primary contributor to
the area’s relatively low unemployment rate.
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Tourism

Although industry is
frequently  considered the
core of an economic base,
secondary  and tertiary
activities also make important
contributions to economic
development. The convention
and tourism business
contribute to the County's
economic base by drawing
income into the region --
resulting in employment and
investment opportunities in
tourist-related facilities.

Knoxville & Knox County - home of the University of the
Tennessee Volunteers. Neyland Stadium - the second largest
on-campus stadium in the country with accommodations for
more than 108,000. Go Vols — 1998 National Champions

The influx of tourist dollars provides stimulus to economic activity in the area. Two major interstate
highways, 1-40 and 1-75, flow through the County, and the southern end of 1-81 terminates just
outside the County. The interstate
and highway systems put the
County within a day’s drive of
more than 70 million people.

The County is the principal
gateway to the Great Smoky
Mountains National Park located
approximately 40 miles to the
southeast. The park, over 500,000
acres, extends over the States of
Tennessee and North Carolina.
Visitors numbered nearly ten
million annually, ranking it as the
most visited National Park in the
United States.
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Tourism (Continued)

Major attractions in the Smokies include Gatlinburg (approximately 40 miles southeast of the
County), a tourist town in the mountains with overnight accommodations for over 60,000 people,
and Pigeon Forge (approximately 20 miles southeast of the County), located at the foothills of the
mountains with overnight accommodations for over 40,000 people. Numerous restaurants, gift and
craft shops, along with a ski lodge, ski lifts and tramway, make Gatlinburg a year-round resort town.
Pigeon Forge is known for being home to hundreds of retail outlets and Dollywood, a theme park
developed by the country music singer, Dolly Parton.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Internal Controls

County management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure the assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to
be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the County is responsible for adequate
internal control structures in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related
to those programs. The internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management.

Budgetary Controls

In addition, the County maintains intensive budgetary controls. The objective of these controls is to
ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual budget appropriated by the County
Commission. Activities of the general fund, selected special revenue funds and the debt service fund
are included in the budget. Project length budgets (as well as an annual budget for some projects)
are adopted for the capital projects funds. The level of budgetary control (the level at which
expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) for the County is at the major category
level within divisions of departments. The major categories are: Personal Services, Employee
Benefits, Contracted Services, Supplies and Materials, Other Charges, Debt Service and Capital
Outlay.

As demonstrated in the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the
County continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.
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Cash Management Policies and Practices

The County has a formal investment policy. Investment decisions are made by an investment
committee in consultation with the Knox County Trustee. Investment options, policies, and
practices defined in the policy, are based on the required liquidity of the available funds. Investments
for operating needs, capital needs, and any surplus funds each have different levels of risk tolerance.
Operating funds, whose primary objective is the preservation of principal, have the lowest level of
risk tolerance and are therefore invested in highly liquid, low risk instruments. Capital funds, whose
primary objective is the preservation of principal and sufficient liquidity to meet capital funding
needs, are subject to some volatility in risk tolerance depending on when payment for projects is
due. Surplus funds, whose primary objective is to provide income for future use, have the highest
level of risk tolerance in order to obtain additional income. Regardless of the type of funds invested,
all investments are made in accordance with state statutes.

It is the County’s policy to minimize credit and market risk while maintaining a competitive yield on
its portfolio. Accordingly, the County’s and the Board’s deposits were either insured by federal
depository insurance or collateralized. The investments held by the County at June 30, 2005,
excluding the portion invested in the State Treasurer’s investment pool and investments of the
Pension Trust funds, consisted of securities of the U.S. Government or its agencies.

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in an investment sweep account, certificates of
deposit, and obligations of the U.S. Government, corporate bonds, and the State of Tennessee Local
Government Investment Pool. The majority of interest earnings are transferred to the County’s Debt
Service fund to offset future debt service costs.

Pension Trust Operations/Employee Retirement Benefits

The employees of the County and the Board participate in a variety of retirement plans. The
majority participate in a defined contribution plan (County DC Plan). Those not participating in the
defined contribution plan participate in the County or the Board’s respective defined benefit plans or
the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System. Both the County’s and the Board’s defined benefit
plans are closed to new members. Participation in one of these plans for eligible employees is
mandatory and a condition of employment.  Employees are given the option to voluntarily
participate in the new Medical Retirement Plan (a defined contribution plan).

The defined contribution plans offer participants a variety of investment options depending on their
sensitivity to risk in their personal portfolio. Plan benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to
the respective plans plus investment earnings. The County determined for financial reporting
purposes, since it acts as the administrator of these plans and maintains considerable fiduciary
responsibility for these plans, the activities of the defined contribution plans should be reported as
pension trust funds. The operations of the defined contribution plans are recorded as pension trust
funds in the County’s reporting entity. The County has taken action to increase yields and decrease
fees and risk in the defined benefit plan. As of this report date, the County is well positioned to meet
the requirements of the plan.
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Risk Management

The County has a comprehensive risk management and self-insurance program for all areas of risk
management including claims for employee health insurance, worker’s compensation insurance and
other claims and judgments against the County. The county has accounted for these activities in two
internal service funds where resources are accumulated to meet potential losses. As part of the
overall risk management strategy, during this fiscal year, the County developed and implemented
discounts for employee health insurance for wellness initiatives and for Tobacco cessation. These
efforts and others position the County to better address the complex healthcare market while
maintaining competitive benefits for employees. An analysis of these types of claims over the years
has enabled the County to implement specific safety measures to reduce the risk of loss.

OTHER INFORMATION
Independent Audit

The Knox County Charter limits the contract with an audit firm to four years. Through a
competitive proposal process, the County selected the accounting firm of Rodefer Moss, LLP, to
perform the annual audit by independent certified public accountants as required by Tennessee
state law. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was
designed to meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act of 1984 and the related U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. We have complied with the requirements
and the independent auditor's report is included in this document.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Knox County
Government for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2004. This was the eighth consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our present
report continues to meet the program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine eligibility for another certificate.

The County also received, for the seventh consecutive time, the GFOA Award for Distinguished
Budget Presentation for its 2004 Annual Operating Budget. In qualifying for the award, the
County’s budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories including policy
documentation, financial planning and organization.
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RODEFER MOSS
rodefer moss & co, pllc

Report of Independent Auditors

County Mayor and the County Commissioners of
Knox County, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Knox County, Tennessee (“County”), as of and for the year ended June
30, 2005, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the

table of contents. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information, of the County as of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 21, 2005, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting oron
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in
considering the results of our audit.

GREENEVILLE - KNOXVILLE - NASHVILLE - TRI-CITIES

» CeRTIFIED PuBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS

» BUSINESS ADVISORS

> TECHNOLOGY
CONSULTANTS

1729 Midpark Road
Suite C-200
Knoxville, TN 37921
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865-583-0560 fax

www.rodefermoss.com



County Mayor and the County Commissioners of
Knox County, Tennessee
Page 2 of 2

Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the other required supplementary information on
pages 3-16 and 88 through 91, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express
no opinion thereon.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, miscellaneous schedules,
and the tables in the statistical section are presented for purposes -of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, and the miscellaneous
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory or statistical sections of this report and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on such data.

Rodefin Mors- & Co P11 L~

Knoxville, Tennessee
November 21, 2005



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Knox County Government, we offer readers of the Knox County
Government’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the Knox County Government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. We
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be
found on pages i-xix of this report. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are
expressed in dollars.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the Knox County Primary Government Total Governmental Activities
exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $305,049,761 (net
assets), which compares to $315,848,471 in 2004. The assets of the Knox County
Government Total Reporting Unit exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by $600,466,308 (net assets), which compares to $601,552,864 in
2004. However, most of the County’s net assets is invested in capital assets, which
will be used in the County’s on-going operations. Conversely, the unrestricted net
assets amounts of $150,361,587 deficit and $111,387,520 surplus for the Primary
Government and Total Reporting Unit, respectively, represent amounts that will be
needed to meet the government’s obligations to citizens and creditors and will be
financed with future tax revenues. This is compared to prior year amounts of
$148,747,919 deficit and $101,760,461 surplus respectively.

Of the Primary Government’s $ 305,049,761 (net assets), $395,113,478 was invested
in Capital Assets (net of related debt), $35,214,873 was restricted for Debt Service,
and $2,236,072 was restricted for Other Purposes. The difference of $150,361,587
(unrestricted net assets) is reported as a deficit, as opposed to available funds that
normally could be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. The reported deficit comes from the process by which the County issues
debt on behalf of the Knox County Board of Education. The County issues general
obligation debt for the Board, the proceeds of which are used for School projects
resulting in Board assets. The Board then makes debt service payments to the County
from future budgets. Since the debt is issued in the County’s legal name, the debt is
reported as a liability of the Primary Government. The unrestricted net deficit
demonstrates the expectation of the Board to fund its portion of the total debt in
future years.

The Primary Government’s total net assets decreased by $10,798,710 or 3.6% of the
$297,329,542 expenses of the Primary Government. This compares to the reported
2004 decrease of $23,121,409, or 7.8% of 2004 expenses totaling $295,256,359. The
primary reason for the difference is the amount borrowed on behalf of, and remitted
to, the Board of Education. In 2005, the amount was $24.8 million while in 2004 it
was $32.0 million. These amounts are classified as expenses in the Primary
Government. Without the payments to the Board, the Primary Government would
have reported a surplus in both years. The Total Reporting Unit’s total net assets
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decreased by $1,086,556 or 0.2% of 2005 expenses of $699,833,783. This compares
to the 2004 decrease of $21,238,641, or 3.1% of 2004 expenses totaling
$689,060,526. These amounts include charges for depreciation. Included in the
government-wide expenses is depreciation expense of $18.0 million and $8.9 million
for the County (excluding Internal Service Funds) and Board of Education
respectively. Without depreciation expense, the Total Reporting Unit would have
reported a net surplus of $25.8 million or 3.7% of total expenses. These results
closely match the combined $29.0 million increase in the Capital Projects funds. This
increase is temporary. As the County builds the new high school and other projects in
the Capital Improvements Plan -- the funds temporarily built up will be spent. The
individual funds are budgeted to “break even” prior to depreciation expense. These
results demonstrate how closely matched revenues and expenses were -- as the
County managed its Budget very well again this year. Cost saving measures enabled
the County to receive some one-time savings from operations. The County again
continued its long record of operating within the approved budget.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Knox County Government’s
governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $130,661,812, an
increase of $33,114,475 in comparison with the prior year balances of $97,547,337.
The increase is primarily attributable to the planned build-up of bond funds for capital
projects ($27,941,011) and a one-time, temporary increase in Debt Service Fund
Balance ($2,581,699). Approximately 75 percent of this total amount, $98,102,339,
is available for spending at the government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).
This compares to $66,473,036 (68%) for the prior year. Again, 94% of the increase or
$27.9 million was due to the temporary build-up of capital funds in accordance with
the County’s Capital Improvement Plan.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was
$40,799,145 or 32% of total General Fund expenditures of $127,494,463 compared to
$39,593,912, or 33% of last year’s spending of $119,565,228. This demonstrates the
County’s continued fiscal discipline and positions the County well to meet
unexpected emergencies, temporary cash needs and other uncertainties our County
faces in the normal course of everyday operations.

The Knox County Government’s total debt of bonds and notes increased by
$48,334,532 (11 percent) during the current fiscal year. The key factors in this
increase were: 1) The issuance of $70 million in Loan Agreements to fund Capital
Projects in accordance with the County’s Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan, 2)
Principal paid of $20.0 million, 3) Funding of $93.3 million in bonds to replace $94.9
million to take advantage of lower interest rates and to achieve savings for the
County, and 4) After year-end, the County issued $77 million in “new money” to
fund the Capital Plan.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Knox County
Government’s basic financial statements. The Knox County Government’s basic financial
statements comprise of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
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fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Knox County Government’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all the Knox County Government’s
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over
time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Knox County Government is either improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Knox
County Government that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or
a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the Knox County Government include general
government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, economic development, and
culture and recreation. Knox County Government reports no business type activities.

The government-wide financial statements include the Knox County Government itself
(known as the primary government), and legally separate entities for which Knox County
Government is financially accountable(component units): school district — the Board of
Education (The Board), a legally separate Emergency Communications District, and the
Knox County Railroad Authority for which the Knox County Government is financially
accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from
the financial information presented for the primary government itself. The Emergency
Communications District issues separate financial statements. The School Board and the
Railroad Authority do not issue separate financial statements. The government-wide
financial statements can be found on pages 17 and 18 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The Knox County Government, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the Knox County Government can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.



Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide reconciliations to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Knox County Government maintains thirteen individual governmental funds.
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheets and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for
the General Fund, the Constitutional Officers Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects
Public Improvement Fund and the Debt Service Fund, all of which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other nine governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The Knox County Government adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General
Fund. A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the General Fund for
information in the Required Supplemental Information section of the report. For a more
detailed demonstration of budgetary compliance, the County also issues a separate
Budget Report to the Citizenry, which is available at the County Finance Office.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-22 of this
report.

Proprietary funds. There are two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The Knox County Government does not use
enterprise funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the Knox County Government’s various functions. Knox
County Government uses internal service funds to account for its fleet service operations,
for its mailroom, its employee benefits, its retirement office operations, its self-insurance
activities, its central maintenance operations, its technical support operations, and its fleet
capital leasing activities. Because these services benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.



Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The eight internal service funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual
fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-25 of this
report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
Knox County Government’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements
can be found on pages 26 and 27 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 28-87 of
this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning
the Knox County Government’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension
benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 88-
91 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
funds are presented on pages 105-135. Combining and individual fund statements for
internal service funds can be found on pages 136-154 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
The Total Reporting Unit assets exceeded liabilities by $600,466,308 at the close of the
most recent fiscal year, which compares to $601,552,864 from last year. The Primary
Government’s net assets were $305,049,761, which compares to last year’s net assets of
$315,848,471. This is in line with the County’s expectations.



Knox County, Tennessee
Net Assets - Primary Government -- Governmental Activities

June 30,
2005 2004
Current and Other Assets 290,724,853 $ 252,535,421
Capital Assets 653,170,140 648,454,811
Total Assets 943,894,993 900,990,232
Long-term Liabilities Outstanding 464,849,062 416,492,137
Other Liabilities 173,996,170 168,649,624
Total Liabilities 638,845,232 585,141,761
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets, net of
Related Debt 395,113,478 430,036,480
Restricted 60,297,870 34,559,910

Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total Net Assets $

(150,361,587)
305,049,761 $

(148,747,919)
315,848,471

By far the largest portion of the Knox County Government’s net assets reflects its
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Knox County
Government uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the Knox County Government’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

KNOX COUNTY GOVERNMENT’S Net Assets
An additional portion of the Knox County Primary Government’s net assets represents
resources that are subject to external restriction on how they may be used. These include
restricted for Debt Service $35,214,873 (last year $32,633,174) Capital Projects
$22,846,925 (last year $0) and Other Purposes $2,236,072 (last year $1,926,736). The
remaining balance of unrestricted net assets deficit of $150,361,587, which compares to
the prior year deficit of $148,747,919, would normally be available to be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The decline of $1,633,798
was nearly identical with the planned, one-time draw down of $2.5 million of
Hotel/Motel taxes for one-time purposes. Excluding the Hotel/Motel fund, the County
would have reported a small surplus for Fiscal 2005. This is how the County intended its
Budget to work. The primary reason for the deficit balance is due to the County’s
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recognition of long-term debt that will be funded through tax collections in future years.
This helps to match the benefits of a long-term asset with the constituency who pays for
it. The County issues debt for the Knox County Board of Education. As the Board and
the County Commission identify school capital needs that require funding from bonds
(through the long-term capital planning process), the County issues those bonds on behalf
of the School Board. Repayment of the bonds is funded through the School operating
budget each year. Since the County is the legal entity issuing the bonds, the bonds are
considered a liability of the County, while the associated capital assets are reported with
the Knox County Board of Education. The payments of the debt related to the bonds
issued on behalf of the School Board are made from the Board’s budgeted funding each
year. At June 30, 2005, the amount of bonds and notes issued by the County on behalf of
the School Board still outstanding was $231,051,311 (excluding unamortized premium)
compared to prior year of $216,546,498. If this liability were shown with the Board’s
amounts to match the capital assets, the County would have had positive unrestricted net
assets.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Knox County Government is able to report
positive balances in all three categories of Total net assets -- for the Total Reporting Unit,
for the Primary Government and for its separate component units. The same situation
held true for the prior fiscal year. The Total Reporting Unit’s net assets decreased by only
$1,086,556 during the current fiscal year ($21,238,641 reported last year). These
activities include $26.9 million for depreciation ($18.0 million in Primary Governmental
Activities and $8.9 million related to the School Board’s operations). The County
finished very much in line with expectations. Depreciation is a non-cash expense that has
not traditionally been considered at the individual fund level. These amounts again
demonstrate the County’s strong local economy combined with its ability and willingness
to live within it means.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the Knox County
Government’s net assets by $10,798,710. Included in this amount is a payment of $24.8
million in Bond proceeds to the School Board for funds borrowed on the Board’s behalf.
Excluding that payment, governmental activities increased net assets by $14,045,990.
This compares favorably with the prior year’s $23,121,409 decrease ($8,878,591 increase
without the Bond Proceeds transfer). This net effect included a $33.1 million net increase
in the Governmental Funds combined with $4.6 million in capital additions greater than
depreciation and Bond Proceeds more than principal payments of $48.3 million net. The
Knox County School Board activity increased the County’s total net assets by $10.1
million. This increase is primarily due to $0.2 million net change in the Board’s Fund
Balances combined with $9.0 million in depreciation charges less than capital outlay and
a $1 million increase establishing the Great Schools Partnership. The Board’s net assets
increased by $10,197,836 which, combined with the Primary Government’s $10,798,710
decline, virtually matches the decline in net assets for the Total Reporting Unit of $1.1
million. This amount includes a $2.5 million planned draw down of Hotel/Motel Fund
Balance for one-time spending. The Total Reporting Unit recorded a deficit of
$1,086,556 which is 0.2% of Total Expenses of $699,833,783. The County’s intent at the
start of the year was to “break even” before depreciation. These results confirm the
County has again demonstrated its financial discipline in another successful year.



KNOX COUNTY GOVERNMENT’S Changes in Net Assets

e The County Property Tax Rate remained at $2.96 for both the tax year and fiscal year
this is another indication of the County’s commitment to fiscal conservatism.

Knox County Primary Government's Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Activities
Primary Government

2005 2004

Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 87392233 $ 77,442,017
Operating Grants and Contributions 22,760,584 23,108,400
General Revenues:

Taxes 148,304,033 136,055,059

Interest Income 2,756,903 2,016,481

Other Revenues 25,009,725 31,715,158

Contracts with Governments and Citizens 307,354 1,797,835
Total Revenues 286,530,832 272,134,950
Expenses:
Finance and Administration 36,027,013 34,272,564
Administration of Justice 13,701,681 12,635,947
Public Safety 59,658,807 62,305,450
Public Health and Welfare 38,931,249 37,779,356
Social and Cultural Services 16,592,017 15,130,591
Other General Government 64,599,046 59,950,268
Highways 21,570,330 23,223,425
Debt Service 21,404,699 17,958,758
Education Payment to Component Unit 24,844,700 32,000,000
Total Expenses 297,329,542 295,256,359
Change in Net Assets (10,798,710) (23,121,409)
Net Assets - July 1 315,848,471 338,969,880

Net Assets - June 30 $ 305049761 $ 315,848,471

Once again, Education was the largest activity by far for the fiscal year. Public Safety
has been a focus of the Mayor — especially increasing the pay of patrol officers. Public
Health and Welfare is also an integral part of the County’s operations. For the most part,
increases in expenses closely paralleled inflation and growth in the demand for services.
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Knox County's Total Reporting Unit -- Governmental Activities

2005 2004

Finance and Administration $ 36,027,013 34,272,564
Administration of Justice 13,701,681 12,635,947
Public Safety 59,658,807 62,305,450
Public Health and W elfare 38,931,249 37,779,356
Social and Cultural Services 16,592,017 15,130,591
Other General Government 64,662,864 60,171,232
Highways 21,570,330 23,223,425
Debt Service 21,404,699 17,958,758
Education 420,136,670 418,742,267
Emergency Communications 7,148,453 6,840,936

Total $ 699,833,783 $ 689,060,526

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted earlier, the Knox County Government uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Knox County Government’s governmental funds
is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable
resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Knox County Government’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year and to help ensure future stability of governmental operations.

Governmental Fund Balances
o ther General Fund

Governmental
Funds

Special Revenue
Constitutional

Debt Service O fficers

Capital Projects
Public
Im provement

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Knox County Government’s governmental
funds reported combined ending fund balances of $130,661,812, an increase of
$33,114,475 in comparison with the prior year. This planned increase was primarily
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related to the temporary build-up of bond proceeds in the Capital Projects Public
Improvement Fund. The net change in fund balances for this fund was an increase of
$27,941,011. Small increases in the Special Revenue, Constitutional Officers, the Debt
Service Fund, the General Fund, and Other Governmental Funds demonstrate another
successful financial year. The unreserved, undesignated portion is available for use in the
County’s discretion. The Capital Projects Public Improvement Fund will be spent down
in 2005-06 to continue the County’s Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan. The fund
balances are for: 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period and
specially reserved items ($32,559,473), 2) to be used for specific designated items
($6,047,915), 3) to be used in conjunction with special revenue purposes ($12,292,357),
or 4) capital projects ($3,665,526) or 5) Debt Service $28,906,228. All of these amounts
are in line with the County’s expectations and intentions. The County continues to show
its financial strength and stability.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Knox County Government. At the
end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance of the General Fund
was $36,751,230 compared to $35,101,652 last year, while total fund balance finished
with a comparable $48,734,076 to last year’s $48,265,285. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund
balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved and undesignated fund balance represents
28.8% of total General Fund expenditures which compares to 29.4% last year, while total
fund balance represents 38.2% of that same amount compared to 40.4% last year. These
amounts indicate that the County maintained the strong relationship between the Fund
Balances and the size of its Budget and is continuing to hold steady in its financial
stability and improve in its flexibility.

The total fund balance of the County’s General Fund increased by $468,791 during 2005
— compared to last year’s $1,144,935 decrease, and the undesignated portion grew
$1,649,578 continuing the County’s positive trend. Key factors in the positive outcomes
for the General Fund are as follows:

e Revenues except for the State, Federal and Other Governments exceeded Budget by
$1,136,981 or 0.9% which shows how closely the County is budgeting revenues
while maintaining a conservative posture. State, Federal and Other Governmental
Revenues exceeded Budget by $2,122,388 much of which was one-time collections.
Total Revenues exceeded Budget by $3,259,369 or 2.5%.

e The General Fund Reserved Fund Balances and Designated Fund Balances declined
$0.7 million and $0.4 million respectively. These decreases were planned as the
County spent the funds as intended. The General Fund Undesignated Fund Balance —
the most evident measure of the County’s financial stability and flexibility —
increased $1.6 million.

e The General Fund departments, in their normal conservative pattern, showed their
fiscal responsibility by turning back unspent budget of $4,457,990 (3.4% of allowed
budget of $131,952,453) for the fiscal year (3.2% last year).

e As intended, the County was able to fund a designated payment of $2.0 million to the
five-year Capital Plan through the conservative budgeting and spending patterns of
the County General Fund. This properly matches one-time savings with one-time
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spending. This practice also allowed the County to help keep debt levels moderate,
while responsibly implementing needed capital improvements. The $2.0 million is
shown in the designated fund balance of the General Fund, and will be shown as a
transfer to the Capital Improvements Fund in the 2005-06 Budget.

The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $35,214,873 which compares to
$32,633,174 last year. The undesignated portion totaled $28,906,228 and $28,024,529 in
2005 and 2004 respectively. The net increase in fund balance during the current year was
$2,581,699 compared to $1,993,677 last year. The undesignated portion of the Debt
Service Fund increased $881,699 on a planned break even fiscal year. The positive
variances were primarily from expenditures less than Budget, resulting from savings on
variable rate transactions in this low interest rate environment. These one-time savings
allowed the County to designate $2 million (one time) toward the Capital Improvements
Plan. The County plans to continue its conservative financial planning.

Proprietary funds. The Knox County Government’s proprietary fund statements provide
underlying detail information included in the government-wide financial statements.

Unrestricted net assets of the Internal Service Funds at the end of the year amounted to
$3,223,106 compared to $3,004,055 at the end of 2004. The slight increase in the balance
reinforces the break-even goal for the funds which are used as a budgeting and planning
tools. The County’s Self-Insurance Fund is used to administer the County’s risk
management efforts. The total change in net assets for all Internal Service Funds was a
$292,634 increase — which was less than 1% of the total Charges for Services. The
increase was primarily due to risk management efforts in the workers’ compensation and
general liability areas.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were within the
normal course of County business and totaled a net $6,656,745 increase in budgeted
results of operations. Included in the increases were carryover appropriations for projects
not completed during the previous fiscal year, appropriations for close-out of the fiscal
year and several one-time projects from one-time funding sources such as an economic
development initiative and a transfer of $3.3 million from one time FY 2004 General
Fund savings to help fund the County’s Capital Plan.

This budgeted $8.5 million increase in net expenditures was offset by positive actual
results, including revenues exceeded amended budgetary estimates by $3.3 million and
expenditures were less than budgetary provisions by $4.5 million and reserves and
designations were reduced by $1.2 million, therefore allowing Undesignated General
Fund Balance to increase by $1.6 million. The overall General Fund Balance increased
by $0.5 million — which matches the County’s intent to break even for fiscal 2005.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Knox County Government Total Reporting Unit investment in
capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for its governmental activities as of June
30, 2005, amounts to $914,422,172 which compares to the prior year total of
$901,866,011. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system,
improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, and bridges.
The total increase in the Knox County Government’s investment in capital assets for the
current fiscal year was a net $12,556,161 or 1.4 percent, most of which relates to
spending within the County’s Five-Year Capital Plan.

Spending for major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the
following: The new Sports Complex park, new branch libraries in Burlington and
Fountain City, Holston Middle School, West High Cafeteria/Library expansion and many
road projects to name a few.

The County Primary Government’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
activities as of June 30, 2005, amounts to $826,235,776 net of accumulated depreciation
of $176,286,794, leaving a resulting net book value of $649,948,982. The prior year net
book value totaled $645,307,236, an increase of $4,641,746 due to acquisition of capital
assets in excess of current year depreciation and retirements. This investment in capital
assets includes land and land improvements, buildings, equipment, infrastructure, and
construction in progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and
of value only to the County, such as roads and streets, bridges, sidewalks, lighting
systems, and similar items.

Additional information on the Knox County Government’s capital assets can be found in
note I11.C on pages 47-8 of this report and pages 173-5.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Knox County Government had
total bonded debt outstanding of $478,868,271 compared to $430,533,739 at the end of
2004. All of this amount consisted of debt backed by the full faith and credit of the
County government. $231,051,311 of the total is outstanding debt which the government
issued on behalf of the Board for school purposes. The remainder ($247,816,960) of the
Knox County Government’s debt represents bonds issued solely for general government
purposes. In Fiscal 2005, the County issued $93,310,000 in Refunding Bonds to replace
$94,935,000 in Bonds to achieve savings for the County and Schools. In Fiscal 2005, the
County also issued $70 million to fund the current year Capital Improvement Plan. Of
these proceeds, $46 million were for General County projects, while $24 million were
dedicated to the School Board. For comparison purposes, at the end of FY 2004, the
County had $213,987,241 in direct debt and $216,546,498 in debt issued on behalf of the
Knox County Schools for a total outstanding debt of $430,533,739.
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KNOX COUNTY GOVERNMENT’S Bonded Debt Changes during FY 2005:

Primary
Rollforward of Debt: Government Board Total
Beginning Balance $ 213,987,241 $216,546,498  $430,533,739
Refunded Debt (44,615,545)  (50,319,455) (94,935,000)
Principal Paid (10,975,830) (9,064,638) (20,040,468)
Issued Amounts (see below) 89,421,094 73,888,906 163,310,000
Ending Amount — Bonds $ 247,816,960 $231,051,311 $478,868,271
Primary
Detail of Debt Issued: Government Board Total
Series 2004 Refunding Bonds $14,337,717  $ 20,212,283 $ 34,550,000
Series 2004 Capital Plan Funding 46,000,000 24,000,000 70,000,000
Series 2005A Refunding Bonds 29,083,377 18,526,623 47,610,000
Series 2005B Refunding Bonds - 11,150,000 11,150,000
Total Debt Issued in FY 2005 $89,421,094 $73,888,906 $ 163,310,000

The Knox County Government’s total bonded debt increased by $48,334,532 (11.2
percent) during the current fiscal year. The key factors in this increase were the issuance
of the 2004 Bonds of $70 million to fund new capital spending in accordance with the
County’s five year Capital Plan. After year-end, the County issued an additional $77
million in new funding in fiscal 2006 to fund the first year of the County’s five year
Capital Plan.

During the current fiscal year, the County refinanced $94.935 million of its existing debt
to again take advantage of favorable interest rates. The savings will be apportioned
between the County and the Board based on their proportion of the total principal of this
transaction.

The Knox County Government maintains a “AA” rating from Standard & Poor’s and a
“Aa2” rating from Moody’s for general obligation debt. Concurrent with the issuance of
the County’s debt, both rating agencies confirmed their ratings for the County. This
continued confidence from the rating agencies confirms the County’s commitment to
financial integrity, stability and strength.

States statutes set no limit for the amount of general obligation debt a governmental
entity may issue. Current debt outstanding for the County Government is $478,868,271.
This translates to approximately $1,253 per capita using the 2000 census population. This
compares to $1,127 per capita last year.

Additional information on the Knox County’s long-term debt can be found in the Notes
to the Financial Statements of this report on pages 59-64.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate for the Knox County Government is currently 3.6% (4.3%
YTD), which is a decrease from a rate of 3.9% percent a year earlier (3.9% YTD).
This compares favorably to the state’s average rate of 5.7% percent currently and
5.4% last year, and the national averages of 5.1% and 5.5% respectively. Knox
County has the lowest unemployment rate of Tennessee’s 6 Metropolitan Statistical
Areas (MSA). This data was taken from the Tennessee Economic Overview,
published by the University of Tennessee Center for Business and Economic
Research and the TN Department of Labor and Workforce Development.

e Knox County has been leading the State in economic development and full
employment for the past several years. While other areas have struggled with
economic activity since the September 11, 2001 tragedy, our underlying economic
basics continue to be sound, which is expected for Knox County. The new
administration is committed to inspire economic activity with investments and jobs.

e The Knoxville leading index has sustained its positive year-over-year percent change
indicating economic activity is at a higher level relative to last year. This is at a time
when many areas and jurisdictions are experiencing a contraction in economic
activity. Moderate growth is expected to continue in the near term, while the longer
term has a much more positive outlook.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Knox County Government’s budget
for the 2005 and 2006 fiscal years.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance in the General
Fund increased to $36,751,230 from $35,101,652. This increase is indicative of the
County’s ability and willingness to maintain financial stability. In addition, the County
was able to set aside $2 million in additional one-time savings, which was designated for
one-time spending in the County’s five-year Capital Plan. These items highlight
conservative nature of County operations by spending less than is allowed through the
adopted budget. Conservative revenue projections and conservative spending have long
been strengths of Knox County’s operations.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Knox County
Government’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to:

Knox County Government
Department of Finance
Suite 630

City/County Building

400 Main Street
Knoxville, TN 37902
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KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2005

Primary Government

Component Units

Knox County

Total -- Knox County Knox County Emergency Total
Governmental Board of Railroad Communications Reporting
Activities Education Authority District Unit
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 96,796,514 $ 45,294,347 9944  $ 4,901,221 147,002,026
Accounts Receivable 15,724,689 28,558,696 21,759 845,082 45,150,226
Property Taxes Receivable, net 119,337,721 100,331,069 - - 219,668,790
Interest and Dividends Receivable 116,609 - - 8,292 124,901
Notes Receivable 9,656,636 - - - 9,656,636
Investments 31,478,785 - - - 31,478,785
Due from Component Units 863,487 - - - 863,487
Due from Primary Government - 385,420 - 90,296 475,716
Due from Other Governments - - - 28,560 28,560
Inventories 281,339 1,405,539 - - 1,686,878
Prepaid Items 642,394 1,104,925 - - 1,747,319
Pension Asset 3,876,954 - - - 3,876,954
Equity Interest in Joint Venture 5,095,976 - - - 5,095,976
Advances to Component Unit 4,308,250 - - - 4,308,250
Capital Assets:
Land and Construction in Process 116,063,814 27,477,942 - - 143,541,756
Other Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation 537,106,326 223,141,482 - 10,632,608 770,880,416
Deferred Bond Issue Costs, Net of
Accumulated Amortization 2,525,369 - - - 2,525,369
Total Assets 943,874,863 427,699,420 31,703 16,506,059 1,388,112,045
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 13,312,325 37,103,717 21,759 218,851 50,656,652
Due to Component Units 475,716 - - - 475,716
Due to Primary Government - 634,681 - 228,806 863,487
Unearned Revenue 122,881,687 95,506,199 - - 218,387,886
Accrued Interest 3,912,150 - - - 3,912,150
Accrued Pension Obligation - 3,385,016 - - 3,385,016
Advances from Primary Government - - - 4,308,250 4,308,250
Self-insurance Liability 7,057,135 - - - 7,057,135
Long-term Obligations:
Due in Less than One Year 26,337,027 1,392,234 - 1,291,251 29,020,512
Due in More than One Year 464,849,062 154,693 - 4,575,177 469,578,932
Total Liabilities 638,825,102 138,176,540 21,759 10,622,335 787,645,736
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets - 250,619,424 - - 250,619,424
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 395,113,478 - - 4,981,105 169,043,272
Restricted for:
Debt Service 35,214,873 - - - 35,214,873
Capital Projects 22,846,925 6,687,200 - - 29,534,125
Other Purposes 2,236,072 2,431,022 - - 4,667,094
Net Assets - Unrestricted (150,361,587) 29,785,234 9,944 902,618 111,387,520
Total Net Assets 305,049,761 $ 289,522,880 9944 § 5,883,723 600,466,308

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Government Component Units Total
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental The The Reporting
Eunctions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Board KCRA District Unit
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Finance and Administration $ 36027013 $ 28316120 $ 234,208 % - $ (7,476,685) $ (7,476,685)
Administration of Justice 13,701,681 3,657,019 75,744 - (9,968,918) (9,968,918)
Public Safety 59,055,357 1,032,281 5,797,754 - (52,225,322) (52,225,322)
Public Safety-Payment to Component Unit 603,450 - - - (603,450) (603,450)
Public Health and Welfare 38,368,614 4,901,207 7,491,516 - (25,975,891) (25,975,891)
Public Health and Welfare-Payment to Component Unit 562,635 - - - (562,635) (562,635)
Social and Cultural Services 16,592,017 1,873,889 885,182 - (13,832,946) (13,832,946)
Agricultural and Natural Resources 390,615 - - - (390,615) (390,615)
Other General Government 64,208,431 47,591,147 2,484,770 - (14,132,514) (14,132,514)
Highways 21,570,330 20,570 5,791,410 - (15,758,350) (15,758,350)
Education - Payment to Component Unit 24,844,700 - - - (24,844,700) (24,844,700)
Debt Service - Interest and Fees 21,404,699 - - - (21,404,699) (21,404,699)
Total primary government $ 297,329,542 $ 87,392,233 $ 22,760,584  $ - (187,176,725) (187,176,725)
Component units:
Board of Education $ 395,291,970 $ 12,199,060 $ 166,099,985 $ - $ (216,992,925) $ - $ - (216,992,925)
Knox County Railroad Authority 63,818 - 64,265 - - 447 - 447
Knox County Emergency
Communications District 7,148,453 3,867,183 - - - - (3,281,270) (3,281,270)
Total component units $ 402504241 $ 16,066243 $ 166,164,250 $ - (216,992,925) 447 (3,281,270) (220,273,748)
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 116,504,303 91,224,003 - - 207,728,306
Sales Taxes 9,133,387 109,296,323 - - 118,429,710
Lodging Taxes 4,207,643 - - - 4,207,643
Business Taxes 5,605,190 - - - 5,605,190
Wheel Taxes 9,182,465 1,500,000 - - 10,682,465
Other Local Taxes 3,671,045 - - - 3,671,045
Interest Income 2,756,903 250,735 - 110,596 3,118,234
Payments from Primary Government - 24,844,700 - 1,166,085 26,010,785
Other Revenues 25,001,861 - - - 25,001,861
Contracts - Other Governments and Citizens 307,354 75,000 - 1,518,460 1,900,814
Miscellaneous 7,864 - - - 7,864
Total General Revenues 176,378,015 227,190,761 - 2,795,141 406,363,917
Change in Net Assets (10,798,710) 10,197,836 447 (486,129) (1,086,556)
Net Assets, July 1 315,848,471 279,325,044 9,497 6,369,852 601,552,864
Net Assets, June 30 $ 305,049,761  $ 289,522,880 $ 9944 $ 5,883,723 $ 600,466,308

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2005

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts
Property Taxes
Interest and Dividends
Notes
Investments
Due from Other Funds
Due from Component Units
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Investment in Joint Venture
Advances to Other Funds
Advances to Component Unit
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Due to Other Funds

Due to Component Units

Deferred Revenue

Advances from Other Funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Fund balances:

Reserved

Unreserved:
Designated
Undesignated

Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Special Revenue
Capital Projects

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Special Capital
Revenue Projects Other Total
Constitutional Public Debt Governmental Governmental

General Officers Improvement Service Funds Funds
$ 7,146,885 $ 6,556,568 $ 33,070,059 $ 21,164,320 $ 18,145,721  $ 86,083,553
7,181,547 - 433,045 296 7,806,864 15,421,752
101,025,238 - - 17,999,200 313,283 119,337,721
- - - 116,609 - 116,609
- - - 6,426,000 3,211,472 9,637,472
31,478,785 - - - - 31,478,785
5,362,803 86,484 - 9,810,891 671,562 15,931,740
238,768 20,787 - - - 259,555
160,302 - - - 5,537 165,839
545,120 - - - 88,217 633,337
5,095,976 - - - - 5,095,976
162,248 - - - - 162,248
- - - 4,308,250 - 4,308,250
$ 158,397,672 $ 6,663,839 $ 33,503,104 $ 59,825,566 $ 30,242,656 $ 288,632,837
$ 7,606,073 $ - $ 892,904 $ 21,813 $ 3,316,595 $ 11,837,385
1,414,379 1,870,056 10,208,231 8,068 3,344,552 16,845,286
5,697 - - 336,275 917 342,889
100,637,447 - - 24,244,537 4,026,233 128,908,217
- - - - 37,248 37,248
109,663,596 1,870,056 11,101,135 24,610,693 10,725,545 157,971,025
7,934,931 - 16,756,669 4,308,645 3,559,228 32,559,473
4,047,915 - - 2,000,000 - 6,047,915
36,751,230 4,793,783 5,645,300 28,906,228 - 76,096,541
- - - - 12,292,357 12,292,357
- - - - 3,665,526 3,665,526
48,734,076 4,793,783 22,401,969 35,214,873 19,517,111 130,661,812
$ 158,397,672 $ 6,663,839 $ 33,503,104 $ 59,825,566 $ 30,242,656 $ 288,632,837

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2005

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Ending Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets, consisting of deferred debt issuance costs ($2,525,369) and pension
asset ($3,876,954), are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore,
are deferred in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge certain costs (e.g., certain
employee benefits, insurance, maintenance, and use of equipment) to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in
the statement of net assets.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and related unamortized premium, capital
leases, compensated absences, and accrued interest are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Bonds Payable $ 478,868,271
Unamortized Bond Premium 19,653,668
Unamortized Amount on Refunding (11,939,335)
Accrued Interest 3,912,150
Compensated Absences 4,494,502

Certain revenues will be collected after year-end but not within the period considered
available to pay current period expenditures. Therefore, these amounts were deferred in the
fund financial statements but have been recognized as revenues under the accrual basis.

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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6,444,264
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KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2005

Special Capital
Revenue Projects Other Total
Constitutional Public Debt Governmental Governmental
General Officers Improvement Service Funds Funds
Revenues
Local Taxes $ 114343327 $ - $ 1526475 $ 20,710,173  $ 11,491,050 $ 148,071,025
Licenses and Permits 3,472,814 - - - - 3,472,814
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties 2,980,362 - - - 251,531 3,231,893
Charges for Current Services 4,639,016 22,132,516 1,192 - 1,062,695 27,835,419
Other Local Revenues 1,702,915 - 1,969,281 - 711,467 4,383,663
Fees Received from County Officials 426,736 - - - - 426,736
State of Tennessee 7,185,463 - 159,611 - 11,967,294 19,312,368
Federal Government 741,228 - 246 - 5,037,649 5,779,123
Other Governments and Citizen Groups 182,180 - 601,000 297,354 374,854 1,455,388
Payments from Component Units - - - 20,838,840 - 20,838,840
Interest Earned - 105,634 64,788 2,543,349 - 2,713,771
Total Revenues 135,674,041 22,238,150 4,322,593 44,389,716 30,896,540 237,521,040
Expenditures
Current:
Finance and Administration 21,805,059 13,604,534 - - 383,309 35,792,902
Finance and Administration - Payments to Component Unit 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
Administration of Justice 12,775,176 - - - 294,048 13,069,224
Public Safety 52,522,985 - - - 4,712,389 57,235,374
Public Safety - Payments to Component Unit 603,450 - - - - 603,450
Public Health and Welfare 27,474,927 - - - 9,843,701 37,318,628
Public Health and Welfare - Payments to Component Unit 562,635 - - - - 562,635
Social and Cultural Services 3,970,464 - - - 10,717,768 14,688,232
Agricultural and Natural Resources 390,615 - - - - 390,615
Other General Government 5,931,928 - - - 7,601,908 13,533,836
Highways - - - - 8,607,547 8,607,547
Decrease in Equity Interest in Joint Venture 457,224 - - - - 457,224
Debt Proceeds Paid to Component Unit - - 24,000,000 - - 24,000,000
Debt Issuance Cost = B 308,200 B = 308,200
Payments to Component Unit - - 5,500 - - 5,500
Capital Projects - - 24,273,805 - 117 24,273,922
Debt Service:
Contracted Services - - - 518,386 - 518,386
Trustee's Commission - - - 350,373 - 350,373
Principal on Bonds - - - 20,040,468 - 20,040,468
Interest on Bonds - - - 21,439,049 - 21,439,049
Total expenditures 127,494,463 13,604,534 48,587,505 42,348,276 42,160,787 274,195,565
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 8,179,578 8,633,616 (44,264,912) 2,041,440 (11,264,247) (36,674,525)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from Other Funds 7,402,990 - 2,602,735 540,259 13,176,595 23,722,579
Transfers to Other Funds (15,113,777) (7,402,990) (396,812) - (1,020,000) (23,933,579)
Long-term Debt Issued - - 70,000,000 101,548,711 - 171,548,711
Payments to Holders of Refunded Debt - - - (101,548,711) - (101,548,711)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (7,710,787) (7,402,990) 72,205,923 540,259 12,156,595 69,789,000
Net Change in Fund Balances 468,791 1,230,626 27,941,011 2,581,699 892,348 33,114,475
Fund Balance (Deficit), July 1 48,265,285 3,563,157 (5,539,042) 32,633,174 18,624,763 97,547,337
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 48,734,076 $ 4793783 $ 22,401,969 $ 35214873 $ 19,517,111 § 130,661,812

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2005

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 33,114,475

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays ($22,632,139) exceeded depreciation ($17,990,393) in the current period. 4,641,746

Certain revenues will be collected after year-end but not within the period considered available to pay current
period expenditures. Therefore, these amounts were recognized as revenues in the statement of activities but were
not reported as revenues in the fund financial statements. 6,581,636

Amounts reported as fund revenues that met the criteria for revenue recognition under the full accrual method of
accounting in the preceding fiscal year have been excluded from the current year statement of activities. (6,348,628)

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term

liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of debt principal is reflected as an expenditure in the

governmental funds, whereas the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Bond

proceeds ($163,310,000) exceeded debt principal payments ($114,975,468) by this amount. (48,334,532)

Expenses reported in the statement of activities include amortization of the deferred amount on debt refunding

($696,257) and amortization of deferred debt issuance costs ($254,960). In addition, the amortization of bond

premium results in reduction of expenses of $1,349,341. These amounts do not require the use of current

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 398,124

Bonds issued at a premium provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but increase long-term

liabilities in the statement of net assets. Conversely, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net

carrying value of debt refunded results in a deferred amount on refunding, which is reported as a deduction from

bonds payable. In addition, bond issuance costs are expenditures of governmental funds, but are deferred assets in

the statement of net assets. Bond premiums ($8,238,711) exceeded the deferred amount on refunding

($5,876,613) and bond issuance costs ($1,206,098) by this amount. (1,156,000)

Expenses reported in the statement of activities include the increase in the liability for compensated absences

($338,125), and the decrease in net pension asset ($33,047). In addition, the reduction of the balance of accrued

interest results in the reduction of expenses of $383,007. These amounts do not require the use of current

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 11,835

Internal service funds are used by management to charge certain costs (e.g., certain employee benefits, insurance,
maintenance, and use of equipment) to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) amounts of the internal
service funds are reported with governmental activities. 292,634

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ (10,798,710)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2005

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts
Notes
Due from Other Funds
Due from Component Units
Inventories
Prepaid Items

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets:

Machinery and Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation

Capital Assets (Net of

Accumulated Depreciation)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Due to Other Funds

Due to Component Units
Deferred Revenue

Self Insured Claims Liability

Compensated Absences Payable

Advances from Other Funds

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Compensated Absences Payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Internal
Service
Funds

10,712,961

302,937
19,164
1,171,594
603,932
115,500
9,057

12,935,145

10,489,162
(7,268,004)

3,221,158

16,156,303

1,474,940
258,048
132,827
555,106

7,057,135

98,085
125,000

9,701,141

10,898

9,712,039

3,221,158
3,223,106

6,444,264

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services

Operating Expenses
Cost of Sales and Services
General and Administration
Depreciation and Amortization
Medical Claims
Retirement Contributions
Other Employee Benefits
Worker's Compensation Claims
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets
Other Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss
Nonoperating Revenues
Payments from Component Units
Other Income
Total Nonoperating Revenues

Loss before Transfers

Transfers
Transfers from Other Funds

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets, July 1

Total Net Assets, June 30

Internal
Service
Funds

$ 47,585,450

1,152,453
7,556,942
1,294,486
15,665,437
17,029,378
402,361
1,412,675
39,406
4,142,012

48,695,150

(1,109,700)

490,486
39,272

529,758

(579,942)

872,576

292,634

6,151,630

$ 6,444,264

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Internal
Service
Funds
Operating Activities
Cash Received from Interfund Services Provided $ 46,760,572
Cash Paid to Employees (1,333,047)
Cash Paid for Goods and Services (13,060,533)
Cash Paid on Behalf of Employees (33,587,018)
Net Cash Used in
Operating Activities (1,220,026)
Noncapital Financing Activities
Receipts from Subrogation Payments 76,288
Transfers from Other Funds 1,363,062
Advances from Other Funds 50,000
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital
Financing Activities 1,489,350
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (1,407,475)
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash
Equivalents/Investments (1,138,151)
Cash and Cash Equivalents/Investments
Beginning of Year 11,851,112
End of Year $ 10,712,961

Reconciliation of Operating Loss
to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
Operating Loss 3 (1,109,700)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss
to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 1,294,486
Loss on Disposal of Capital Asset 39,406

Change in Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease in Accounts Receivable (84,934)
Decrease in Due from Other Funds (420,121)
Decrease in Due from Component Units (373,340)
Decrease in Inventories (20,077)
Increase in Prepaid Items (466)
Decrease in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (130,972)
Increase in Due to Other Funds (25,806)
Increase in Due to Component Units (12,274)
Increase in Compensated Absences (938)
Increase in Deferred Revenue (385,290)

Total Adjustments (110,326)
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities $ (1,220,026)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integ?al part of this statement.



KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2005

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables:

Accounts

Contributions
Investments
Prepaid Items

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Governments

Due to Litigants, Heirs and Others

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

Held in Trust for:
Pension Benefits

Pension Agency
Trust Funds Funds

$ - 23,470,834
- 5,887,038

42,162 -

248,275,043 -

18,080 -
248,335,285 29,357,872
40,941 7,365,506
- 4,358,501
- 17,633,865
40,941 29,357,872

$ 248,294,344

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2005

Additions
Contributions:
Employer
Employees
Transfers from Other Plans
Total Contributions

Investment Earnings:
Interest and Dividend Income
Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments
Total Investment Earnings
Less Investment Expenses
Net Investment Earnings

Total Additions

Deductions
Benefits and Refunds

Transfers to Other Funds (Administrative and Professional)

Transfers to Other Plans
Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits, July 1

Total Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits, June 30

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Pension
Trust Funds

$ 7,485,148
9,365,421
81,333

16,931,902

1,493,425
15,070,370

16,563,795
(275,144)

16,288,651

33,220,553

14,576,994
661,576
311,333

15,549,903

17,670,650

230,623,694

$ 248,294,344




KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2005
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KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2005

NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity

Knox County (the County), founded in 1792, is a political subdivision of the State of Tennessee. The
County operates under a County Mayor — County Commission form of government pursuant to the Knox
County Home Rule Charter (the Charter) established under Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 5-1-208,
effective September 1, 1990. The County Mayor serves an elected term of four years. The nineteen
County Commissioners serve four-year terms and are elected by district votes within the County. As
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present the County and its Component Units. The County is considered to be the primary
government. Component Units are legally separate entities for which the County is considered to be
financially accountable. These Component Units are discretely presented in separate columns in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the County.

Discretely Presented Major Component Units - the County

The Knox County Board of Education (the Board) consists of nine members elected by voters of the
County and one superintendent appointed by members of the Board. The Board is fiscally dependent on
the County because the County levies taxes for the Board, issues debt on behalf of the Board and
approves the Board's Budget. The Board is responsible for elementary and secondary education within
the County's jurisdiction. The Board operates a total of 86 vocational and handicapped centers, primary,
intermediate, middle and high schools. The full-time equivalent average daily membership during the
2004 - 2005 school year was 53,119 with a full time equivalent average daily attendance of 49,990.
During the previous year, the full time equivalent average daily membership was 52,595 with a full time
equivalent average daily attendance of 49,554.

The Knox County Railroad Authority (KCRA) was established by Knox County in April 1999, to
provide for the continuation of rail service within the County. KCRA is governed by a two-member
Board consisting of the County Mayor and a member selected by the County Commission. KCRA is
fiscally dependent on the County for approval of all debt issuances.

The Knox County Emergency Communications District (the District) is an emergency response
agency operating a consolidated public safety answering point service and emergency radio dispatch
service for the residents of the County. The District is governed by an eleven-member Board of
Directors, of whom the majority are appointed by the County. Debt issuances or lease agreements
exceeding five years require County approval. The District has the authority to levy an emergency
telephone service charge to be used to fund the emergency telephone service. The County, however, may
reduce the levy provided the reduction does not preclude the District from the authorized activities
established in the Tennessee Code Annotated.
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NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
A. Reporting Entity (Continued)
Complete financial statements for the District may be obtained at the entity's administrative offices:

Knox County Emergency Communications District
605 Bernard Avenue
Knoxville, TN 37921

The Board and KCRA do not issue separate financial statements from those of the County. Fund
financial statements for the Board are, therefore, included in these financial statements. The activities of
KCRA are accounted for in a single fund, and the information presented in the government-wide
financial statements also constitutes the fund financial statements.

Discretely Presented Major Component Unit - the Board

The Great Schools Partnership Charitable Trust (the Partnership) was established during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2005. Its purpose is to support the Knox County Schools by expending funds in
furtherance of the exempt purposes of the Board or by distributions of funds directly to the Board. The
Partnership is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization governed by a thirteen-member board
consisting of representatives of the Board, Knox County, the City of Knoxville, and various other
governmental, educational, and not-for-profit organizations. Although the Board does not control the
timing or amount of expenditures made by the Partnership, the majority of the resources, or income
therefrom, that the Partnership holds are restricted to the exempt purposes of the Board by the donors.
Therefore, the Partnership is considered a component unit of the Board and is discretely presented in the
Board’s financial statements.

The Partnership does not issue separate financial statements. Its activities are accounted for in a single
fund, and the information presented in the Board’s financial statements also constitutes the fund financial
statements.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the County have been prepared in conformity with accounting

principles as generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
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NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain
legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and employ the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they are "measurable and available”. "Measurable”
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available™ means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The County considers all
revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after the fiscal year end. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, except for debt and
certain compensated absences which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources.
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NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
considered susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of
the County are also recognized as revenue. Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available
when cash is received by the County and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible-to-accrual
criteria are met. Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures
have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.

Fund Accounting: The accounts of the County are organized, operated and presented on the basis of
funds. Funds are independent fiscal and accounting entities with self-balancing sets of accounts. Fund
accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in
demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number
of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Constitutional Officers Fund accounts for activities associated with the administrative functions
of the County’s Constitutional Officers.

The Public Improvement Fund accounts for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of major
capital projects not being financed by proprietary funds, exclusive of construction activity related to
the Americans with Disabilities Act.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by
proprietary funds.
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NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)
Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Internal service funds account for operations of the County that provide services to other departments,
agencies, other governments, component units, and joint ventures on a cost reimbursement basis.

Activities accounted for in the internal service funds include: (1) provision of gasoline and maintenance
services for County vehicles, (2) operation of a central mailroom, (3) payment of employee medical and
unemployment claims, (4) accounting for the County’s retirement plan contributions, (5) accounting for
the payment of workers” compensation and general liability claims, (6) provision of central maintenance
for County buildings, (7) providing technical support for electronic data processing functions, and (8)
providing leased vehicles and equipment to County departments.

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of
others. Trust funds account for assets held by the government under the terms of a formal trust
agreement. Fiduciary funds include the following:

The pension trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as the proprietary funds, using
the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. The pension trust fund accounts for the assets of
the County's defined benefit pension plan, defined contribution pension plan, and its defined contribution
medical retirement plan. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period when contributions are
due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Employer contributions are recognized when
due and the County makes a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Fiduciary funds also include agency funds used to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds held
for various third parties. Agency funds include transactions related to (1) local sales taxes collected by
the State of Tennessee and remitted to the County for distribution to other municipalities, (2) funds held
on behalf of juvenile defendants, (3) funds held on behalf of subdivision developers pending completion
of road and hydrology requirements, (4) cash held by the County on behalf of several external agencies
and County joint ventures, and (5) funds held by various elected officials on behalf of state agencies
and/or other funds.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board.
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NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
activities subject to this same limitation. The County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for internal
service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use
restricted resources first and then, unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Component Units

The Board of Education uses two major governmental funds (general fund and school construction
capital projects), three nonmajor governmental (special revenue) funds, and fiduciary funds (pension trust
fund, agency). These fund types use the same measurement focus and basis of accounting as those of the
County. KCRA and the Partnership follow the County’s governmental funds measurement focus and
basis of accounting. The District follows the County's proprietary funds measurement focus and basis of
accounting.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity
Deposits and Investments
The cash and cash equivalents of the County and its component units are considered to be cash on hand,

demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date
of acquisition.
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NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)
Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The County maintains a pooled cash system through the Knox County Trustee. The fair value of
purchased investments and investment income at fiscal year end is allocated to major funds based on the
total cash position of that fund at fiscal year end. In accordance with County directive, the majority of
interest earned during the year is allocated to the Debt Service Fund for retirement of future debt.

State statutes and local ordinances authorize the County and the Board to invest in certificates of deposit,
the State Local Government Investment Pool, U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. agency issues, corporate
bonds, equity funds, short-term bond funds, and guaranteed investment contracts.

The County’s and its component units’ investments are carried at fair value. Short-term investments,
however, are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national exchange
are valued at the last reported sales price.

Receivables, Payables, and Deferred Revenue

In the County’s fund financial reporting, transactions between County funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either
"interfund receivables/payables™ (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other
funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as "due to/from other funds."

Transactions between the County and its component units that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "advances to/from Component
Units." All other outstanding balances between the County and its component units are reported as "due
to/from Component Units/Primary Government.”

In the fund financial statements governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with

receivables for revenues that are not considered available to liquidate liabilities of the current accounting
period. Governmental funds also defer recognition of revenues in connection with resources that have
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NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

been received, but not yet earned. The County accrues additional assets (receivables) for certain
nonexchange revenues in governmental funds. As governmental funds are subject to the modified
accrual basis of accounting, any additional revenues recognized as receivable before the resources are
available have been reported as deferred revenues with no resulting effect on fund equity. Unearned
revenue in the government-wide financial statements consists of resources received that have not yet been
earned.

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Property taxes receivable are
recognized as of the date an enforceable legal claim to the taxable property arises. In Tennessee, this date
is January 1%, and is referred to as the lien date. Revenues from property taxes, however, are recognized
in the period for which the taxes are levied, which for the County is October 1 of the ensuing fiscal year.
Since the receivable for property taxes is recognized before the period of revenue recognition, the entire
amount of the receivable, less an estimated amount for uncollectible taxes, is reported as deferred revenue
in the fund financial statements and unearned revenue in the government-wide financial statements as of
June 30.

Property taxes receivable are also reported as of June 30 for the taxes that are levied and uncollected
during the current fiscal year as well as the previous eight fiscal years. These property taxes receivable
are presented on the fund balance sheet with offsetting deferred revenue to reflect amounts not available
as of June 30. Property taxes collected within 60 days of year-end are considered available and are
accrued as revenue.  Property taxes collected later than 60 days after year-end are not considered
available and are accrued and reported as deferred revenue. An allowance for uncollectible taxes is also
recorded representing the estimated amount of delinquent taxes receivable that will be filed with the court
for collection. Delinquent taxes filed with the court for collection are considered uncollectible and are
written off.

In the fund financial statements, the balance of notes receivable and advances between funds are offset by
a fund balance reserve to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable
available financial resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Assets

The County maintains material inventory balances in its proprietary and governmental funds. Inventories
in the proprietary funds are stated at the lower of cost or market. Inventories in the governmental funds
are stated at cost. Inventories are accounted for under the consumption method. Supplies for resale and
the cost of oil and gasoline in the internal service funds use the first-in, first-out (FIFO) flow assumption
in determining cost. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid assets.
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NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)
Inventories and Prepaid Assets (Continued)

The Board values school supplies inventories using the specific identification method. The Board's
Central Cafeteria Fund inventories are composed of food supplies. These inventories are stated at cost.

The County's general fund inventory consists of land held for resale. The land is recorded at cost
excluding the cost of infrastructure (roads, utilities, etc.). In the governmental funds the balance of
prepaid assets and inventories are offset by a fund balance reserve to indicate that they are not available
for appropriation and are not expendable, available financial resources.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the governmental activities column in the government-wide
financial statements. The County defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized.

All reported capital assets are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives
of the related capital assets. Useful lives for infrastructure were estimated based on the County’s
historical records of necessary improvements and replacement. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 45
Land Improvements 10- 20
Public Domain Infrastructure 40
System Infrastructure 25
Vehicles 5
Machinery and Equipment 5-20
Intangibles 5

It is the County’s and the District’s policy to capitalize the cost of the rights to externally acquired
software as an intangible asset.
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D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

Compensated Absences

It is the policy of the County and its component units to permit employees to accumulate, in varying amounts,
earned but unused vacation, compensatory time and sick pay benefits. There is no liability recorded for unpaid
accumulated sick leave since the County does not have a policy to pay any such amounts upon separation from
employment. Vacation and compensatory pay from the County's and the Board's governmental funds is not
reported in their respective fund financial statements because it is not expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources. No expenditure is reported for these amounts. For the County and Component Unit
governmental activities, compensated absences liabilities are generally liquidated by the respective general fund.
The compensated absences liability and the related change in liability are reported in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements of the County and its component units.

Long-Term Obligations

The County and the Board record long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. Similarly, long-
term debt and other obligations financed by the County's proprietary funds and the District are recorded as
liabilities in the appropriate funds.

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as deferred amounts on refundings, are deferred and amortized over the life
of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable unamortized
bond premium or discount deferred amounts on refundings. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges
and amortized over the term of the related debt on the straight-line basis.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,
are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements of the governmental funds, reservations of fund balances represent amounts that are
not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balances represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change and are available for appropriation at the discretion of management.

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in capital assets,
net of related debt; restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on resources that are
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or imposed by
County law.
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NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
E. Additional Information
Comparative Data/Reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in selected sections of the accompanying
financial statements to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position and operations of
the County and the Board. Comparative totals have not been included on statements where their
inclusion would not provide enhanced understanding of the reporting entity's financial position and
operations or would cause the statements to be unduly complex and difficult to understand. Also, certain
amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current
year's presentation.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may differ from these estimates.

NOTE Il. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Data
Budget Basis/Authority

Annual budgets, as required by the County Charter and applicable County ordinances, are adopted on a
basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for all
governmental funds, except the Constitutional Officers, Drug Control, and portions of the Capital
Projects Funds.

The Constitutional Officers Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the transactions of the fee and
commission accounts of the County Trustee, Register of Deeds, County Clerk, Criminal and Fourth
Circuit Court Clerk, Circuit and General Sessions Court Clerk, and Clerk and Master. These separately
elected officials pay salaries and related expenditures from fees and commissions earned by their offices.

Excess fees and commissions are transferred to other funds. In some instances, all fees and commissions
earned are transferred to other funds. Transactions related to the Constitutional Officers Special Revenue
Fund are not subject to the budgetary control of the County Commission. Therefore, this fund is
presented as an unbudgeted special revenue fund.
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NOTE Il. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
A. Budgetary Data (Continued)

The Drug Control Special Revenue Fund was established in the 1998 fiscal year pursuant to an
amendment of Tennessee Code Annotated Section 39-17-420, stipulating drug control activities to be
reported in a special revenue fund. The budget for this fund is a separately adopted budget presented by
the Sheriff and approved by the County Commission. It is not part of the annual adopted budget
presented to the County Commission.

The County’s Public Improvement Capital Projects Fund and the Board’s School Construction Capital
Projects Fund each adopt project-length budgets for major construction projects rather than annual
budgets for these projects. The County and the Board adopt annual budget amounts for certain
expenditures within these funds. The County’s Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Construction
Capital Projects Fund’s budget is adopted on an annual basis.

Budgets for portions of the County’s State and Federal Grants Fund and all of the Board’s School
Projects and School Federal Projects Funds are generally adopted at the time the grant or program has
been approved by the grantor, so the Commission can fulfill any requirement to appropriate local
matching funds at the time of adoption.

With the exception of project length budgets and grants, all appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
Budgetary Process

On or before April 15, heads of all County departments and agencies submit requests for appropriations
to the County Department of Finance. The Board prepares a comprehensive budgetary request that is also
sent to the Department of Finance. This budget has been approved by the members of the Board of
Education and is sent to the County for adoption.

The Department of Finance in conjunction with the Office of the County Mayor compiles the requests,
negotiates with the various departments and submits a comprehensive budget to the County Commission.
By July 1, the final County and Board budget is adopted by County Commissioners.

The appropriated County budget is prepared at the fund, department, and major category level. For the
County, the legal level of budgetary control, that is, the level at which management cannot overspend
funds without a budget amendment approved by the Finance Committee of the County Commission, is
the major category level within departments. The major categories are Personal Services, Employee
Benefits, Contracted Services, Supplies and Materials, Other Charges, Debt Service and Capital Outlay.
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NOTE Il. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
A. Budgetary Data (Continued)

The budget adopted by the County for the Board is recommended by the County Mayor and adopted in
total. The County does not exercise control over the Board at the department or major category level.
After the budget for the Board is approved, the Board of Education may modify it within the total
appropriation granted by the County Commission.

The budget and actual schedules included herein are not intended to demonstrate compliance at the legal
level of budgetary control. Such statements and schedules are included in the County's separately issued
Budget Report to Citizenry. Copies of the report may be obtained from the Knox County Department of
Finance:

Knox County Department of Finance
Room 630

City County Building

400 Main Avenue

Knoxville, TN 37902

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation, is utilized in
the governmental funds. Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for
goods or services. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances
and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the
subsequent year. Outstanding encumbrances are reappropriated in the subsequent year.

Supplemental Appropriations
The following schedule shows the annual budget originally adopted (excluding transfers to other funds)

for the County and the Board, and the revisions to that budget as authorized by the County Commission,
for the year ended June 30, 2005:
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NOTE Il. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

A. Budgetary Data (Continued)

Original Revised
Fund Budget Revisions Budget

Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ 139,492,279 $ 7,678,790 $ 147,171,069
Special Revenue Funds:

State and Federal Grants 947,150 22,541,571 23,488,721

Governmental Library 120,000 53,000 173,000

Public Library 10,577,076 525,569 11,102,645

Solid Waste 3,417,087 1,162,694 4,579,781

Hotel/Motel Tax 6,800,000 - 6,800,000

Fire District 170,000 - 170,000

Highway 11,543,751 398,186 11,941,937

Drug Control - 689,870 689,870
Total Special Revenue Funds 33,575,064 25,370,890 58,945,954
Debt Service Fund 44,000,000 101,457,202 145,457,202
Capital Projects Funds:

Public Improvement 250,500 74,215 324,715

ADA Construction 750,000 1,387,548 2,137,548
Total Capital Projects Funds 1,000,500 1,461,763 2,462,263
Total - Governmental Funds $ 218,067,843 $ 135,968,645 $ 354,036,488
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NOTE Il. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

A. Budgetary Data (Continued)

Original Revised
Fund Budget Revisions Budget
Component Unit - the Board:
General Fund:
General Purpose School $ 311,931,500 $ 9,631,098 $ 321,562,598
Special Revenue Funds:
School Federal Projects - 42,579,723 42,579,723
School General Projects - 6,644,274 6,644,274
Central Cafeteria 17,155,500 1,482,565 18,638,065
Total Special Revenue Funds 17,155,500 50,706,562 67,862,062
Capital Projects Fund:
School Construction 16,700,000 473,695 17,173,695
Total - the Board $ 345,787,000 $ 60,811,355  $ 406,598,355

Designated funds, as of June 30, 2005, in the General Fund, Public Library Fund, the Highway Fund,
and the Debt Service Fund reappropriated in the subsequent fiscal year totaled $4,047,915, $54,402,
$2,761,775, and $2,000,000, respectively.

Remaining supplemental appropriations primarily represent funds designated during the previous fiscal
year, encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2005, and grant awards appropriated at the time the award
is received.

A local ordinance requires a two-thirds approval of the County Commission before reducing any County
fund balance below an amount equal to five percent of the total amount budgeted in the fund. State law
stipulates that the Board’s General Purpose School Fund balance in excess of three percent of the
budgeted annual operating expenses for the current fiscal year may be budgeted and expended for
nonrecurring purposes but shall not be used for recurring annual operating expenses.
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NOTE I1l. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Deposits and Investments

The County, the Board and the District maintain a cash and investment pool through the County Trustee's
office. The County Trustee is the treasurer of the County and in this capacity is responsible for receiving,
disbursing, depositing and investing most funds. The carrying amount of balances approximates bank
balances.

The Trustee of Knox County utilizes a negotiated sweep agreement for a portion of funds held by the
Trustee. These funds are invested each night in various instruments, but under the County’s policy
these funds are classified as Cash and Cash Equivalents.

Other investments are held in the State of Tennessee’s Local Government Investment Pool (“LGIP”) and
are not subject to categorization. Fair value of investments held in the LGIP approximates carrying
value.

Cash and investments for the County and its Component Units as shown in the financial statements
follows:

Component Units

Primary The The
Government Board KCRA District
Cash on Hand $ 4585 $ 165 $ - $ -
Carrying Amount of Deposits 117,290,307 45,294,182 9,944 4,901,221
Investments (Governmental Funds) 31,478,785 - - -
Investments (Pension Trust Funds) 248,275,043 73,575,991 - -
Investment in State Treasurer's
Investment Pool 2,972,456 - - -
Total $ 400,021,176 $ 118,870,338 $ 9,944 $ 4,901,221
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 120,267,348 $ 45294347 $ 9,944 $ 4,901,221
Investments 279,753,828 73,575,991 - -
Total $ 400,021,176 $ 118,870,338 $ 9,944 $ 4,901,221
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NOTE I1l. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the County’s
governmental activities investments are managed by an investment board, whose objectives are to
maximize earnings while reducing the exposure to interest rate risks to a low level by utilizing a mixture
of short and long-term maturity investments, primarily in investments in U.S. Government Securities and
securities issued by agencies of the U.S. Government. The County’s and Board’s Pension Trust fund
activities are managed by the Knox County Retirement Board, whose objectives are to maximize
earnings while reducing the exposure to interest rate risks to an appropriate level by using a mixture of
long-term and short-term investments in various debt and equity securities. The investments of the
County’s defined benefit plan and the Board’s defined benefit plan are included in a single trust account.
The following represents the County’s governmental activities investments and the activities of the
County’s and the Board’s Pension Trust funds:

Primary Government, Govenmental Fiduciary Activities, Primary
Activities Government and Board
Fair Weighted Fair Weighted
Value or Average Value or Average
Carrying Maturity Carrying Maturity
Amount (Years) Amount (Years)
Cash Equivalents Classified as Investments $ 17,920 $ 1,710,434
Equity Mutual Funds $ - $ 294,235,660
Fixed Income Securities:
U.S. Government Securities 12,710,451 0.654 3,823,565 4.025
U.S. Government Agency Securities 18,750,404 1.257 8,576,325 3.366
Corporate Bonds - 12,342,059 4.040
Municipal Bonds - 667,673 2.331
State Agency Bonds - 495,318 6.833
Total Fixed Income Securities $ 31,460,855 1.138 $ 25,904,940 5.791

Custodial credit risk:

The County’s policies limit deposits and investments to those instruments allowed by applicable state
laws. Tennessee State Law requires financial institutions to secure a local government's deposits by
pledging governmental securities as collateral. The market value of pledged securities must equal at
least 105% of the average daily balance of deposits. Alternatively, financial institutions that hold
public deposits may participate in the State’s collateral pool.
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NOTE I1l. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk (Continued)

A portion of the County’s, the Board’s and the District’s deposits at June 30, 2005 were covered by the
bank collateral pool administered by the Treasurer of the State of Tennessee (the State). Banks
participating in the pool report the aggregate balance of their public fund accounts to the State.
Collateral to secure these deposits must equal between 90 — 115 percent of the average daily balance of
public deposits held and must be pledged to the State Treasurer on behalf of the bank collateral pool.
The securities pledged to protect these accounts are pledged in aggregate rather than against each
individual account. The members of the pool may be required to pay an assessment to cover any
deficiency.

Credit risk:

The County’s policies are designed to maximize investment earnings, while protecting the security of
principal and providing adequate liquidity, in accordance with all applicable laws. The County’s and
Board’s Pension Trust funds are managed with long-term objectives that include maximizing total
investment earnings. State statutes and County policies allow the Pension Trust funds a broader range
of investments than those available to the governmental activities. The credit risk of the investments of
the County’s governmental activities and the County’s and Board’s Pension Trust funds investments in
fixed-income securities (excluding U.S. Government securities) is as follows:

Primary Government, Govenmental Fiduciary Activities, Primary
Fair S&P Fair S&P
Value Rating Value Rating
U.S. Government Agency Securities: $ 18,750,414 AAA $ 8,576,325 AAA
Corporate Bonds:
Corporate Bonds - 375,921 AAA
Corporate Bonds - 753,480 AA
Corporate Bonds - 1,708,923 AA-
Corporate Bonds - 4,708,636 A+
Corporate Bonds - 1,693,972 A
Corporate Bonds - 2,013,619 A-
Corporate Bonds - 724,652 BBB+
Corporate Bonds - - 362,856 BB+
Municipal Bonds - - 667,673 AA
State Agency Bonds - - 495,318 AAA
Total Fixed Income Securities $ 18,750,414 3 22,081,375

The County’s governmental activities investments and the County’s and the Board’s pension trust
investments have no investments in any single issuer of fixed income securities that represent 5 percent
or more of plan net assets.
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NOTE Ill. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Receivables

Receivables for the County’s individual major funds and nonmajor governmental, internal service, and
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, as of year-end, including allowances for uncollectible accounts are:

Primary Government

Major Governmental Funds Nonmajor Total
Debt Public Governmental  Internal Government- Trust and
General Service Improvement Funds Service Wide Agency

Receivables:

Interest $ - $ 116,609 $ - $ - $ - $ 116,609 $

Taxes 103,469,742 18,524,466 - 540,320 - 122,534,528 -

Accounts 7,181,547 296 433,045 7,806,864 302,937 15,724,689 5,887,038

Contributions - - - - - - 42,162
Gross Receivables 110,651,289 18,641,371 433,045 8,347,184 302,937 138,375,826 5,929,200
Less: Allowances

for Uncollectibles (2,444,504) (525,266) - (227,037) - (3,196,807) -

Net Total Receivables $ 108,206,785 $ 18,116,105 $ 433,045 $ 8,120,147 $302,937 $ 135,179,019 $5,929,200

Receivables for the County's component units as of year-end, including the allowances for uncollectible
accounts are:

Component Units: Government-wide Totals The Board -
The Board KCRA The District Pension Trust
Receivables:
Interest $ - $ - $ 8,292 $ -
Taxes 103,001,258 - - -
Accounts 28,558,696 21,759 845,082 -
Contributions - - - 783,381
Gross Receivables 131,559,954 21,759 853,374 783,381

Less: Allowances
for Uncollectibles (2,670,189) - - -

Net Total Receivables $ 128,889,765 $ 21,759 $ 853,374 $ 783,381
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B. Receivables (Continued)
The County’s Debt Service Fund has the following notes receivable at June 30, 2005:

(1) A non-interest bearing note receivable from the Development Corporation (the Corporation)
with a current balance of $600,000 payable in equal annual installments of $300,000 began in
January 1998. This note was given by the Corporation, in exchange for transfers from the
County, effective January 1, 1992, of land developments commonly known as Westbridge
Industrial Park, Eastbridge Industrial Park, and Centerpoint Park.

(2) Notes receivable from the Knox-Chapman Utility District (KCUD) and the West Knox Utility
District of Knox County (WKUD) have current balances of $1,770,000 and $1,935,000
respectively. The basis of these notes is an agreement made by the County to participate with
the utility districts to expedite utility relocation and upgrading necessary for construction of
improved roadways within the northwest portion of the County. Each district was advanced up
to $2,000,000, which was disbursed by the County in installments upon receipt of draw notices.
The advances are non-interest bearing and are individually payable in four varying installments
every five years based on the completion dates of the respective projects. The amount to be
repaid also includes $140,000, recognized as revenue when received, that each district must
pay to cover the County's administrative, accounting and financial costs associated with the
agreements.

(3) A note receivable from the Knoxville-Knox County Community Action Committee (CAC)
with an initial balance of $2,300,000 was originated during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.
The note resulted from an arrangement between the County and CAC whereby certain
proceeds from debt issued by the County were used to construct a facility on CAC’s behalf.
CAC agreed to reimburse the County by repaying the annual amounts of the County’s related
debt service requirements. The resulting note receivable is due in varying principal
installments, plus interest, through 2022. As of June 30, 2005, $2,121,000 remained
outstanding.

The State and Federal Grants Special Revenue Fund had $3,211,472 of notes receivable at June 30,
2005. These note agreements are from eligible County citizens participating in various state and
federal low-income housing projects. These notes are executed with a range of below market interest
rates and varying repayment terms.
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C. Capital Assets

Activity in the County’s and the Board’s capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, was the
following:

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 86,580,600 $ 2,350,991 $ 449,098 $ 88,482,493

Construction in Progress 71,653,209 10,992,929 55,064,817 27,581,321
Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated 158,233,809 13,343,920 55,513,915 116,063,814
Capital Assets being depreciated:

Buildings 154,524,841 28,515,170 - 183,040,011

Land Improvements 12,779,666 5,240,779 - 18,020,445

Machinery and Equipment 32,853,252 2,939,619 1,310,173 34,482,698

Intangible Assets 886,293 11,111,917 250 11,997,960

Infrastructure 454,847,587 18,402,124 - 473,249,711
Total Capital Assets being depreciated 655,891,639 66,209,609 1,310,423 720,790,825
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings 45,820,137 3,511,341 - 49,331,478

Land Improvements 4,537,371 643,548 - 5,180,919

Machinery and Equipment 19,419,350 3,443,547 1,270,767 21,592,130

Intangible Assets 555,421 93,444 250 648,615

Infrastructure 95,338,358 11,592,999 - 106,931,357
Total Accumulated Depreciation 165,670,637 19,284,879 1,271,017 183,684,499
Total Capital Assets being depreciated, net 490,221,002 46,924,730 39,406 537,106,326

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net ~ $ 648,454,811 $ 60,268,650 $ 55,553,321 $ 653,170,140

Depreciation expense was charged to primary government functions as follows:

Finance and Administration $ 214,533
Administration of Justice 579,566
Public Safety 1,667,783
Public Health and Welfare 962,179
Social and Cultural Services 1,744,577
Other General Government 2,237,499
Highways 11,878,742

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 19,284,879
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C. Capital Assets (Continued)

Board of Education

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Component Unit - The Board:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 16,880,798 $ 528,700 $ $ 17,409,498

Construction in Progress 9,008,223 16,683,721 15,623,500 10,068,444

Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated 25,889,021 17,212,421 15,623,500 27,477,942
Capital Assets being depreciated:

Buildings 325,366,669 15,774,598 - 341,141,267

Machinery and Equipment 17,097,278 503,606 - 17,600,884

Intangible Assets 181,896 42,635 - 224,531
Total Capital Assets being depreciated 342,645,843 16,320,839 - 358,966,682
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings 117,611,422 7,444,708 - 125,056,130

Machinery and Equipment 9,155,016 1,468,424 - 10,623,440

Intangible Assets 131,008 14,622 - 145,630
Total Accumulated Depreciation 126,897,446 8,927,754 - 135,825,200
Total Capital Assets being depreciated, net 215,748,397 7,393,085 - 223,141,482

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net  $ 241,637,418 $ 24605506 $ 15,623,500 $ 250,619,424

The following is a summary of the District’s capital assets at June 30, 2005:

The
District
Land and Buildings $ 5,005,941
Machinery and Equipment 12,281,035
Intangible Assets 29,345
Leasehold Improvements 207,735
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (6,891,448)
Total $ 10,632,608
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D. Interfund and Component Unit Receivables and Payables

Interfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system,
and (3) payments between funds are made. The composition of the County and component unit
interfund receivables and payables as of June 30, 2005, is as follows:

Due to/from Other Funds - Primary Government:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Major Funds:

General State and Federal Grants $ 3,176,538
Public Library 38,049
Solid Waste 2,880
Highway 19,891
Constitutional Officers' Special
Revenue Fund 1,870,056
Vehicle Service Center 249,273
Public Improvement 528
Retirement 1,829
Self Insurance 34
Technical Support Service 3,725
5,362,803
Debt Service Public Improvement 9,810,891
Constitutional Officers General 64,607
Governmental Library 141
Public Library 588
Solid Waste 31
Hotel/Motel Tax 8,164
Fire District 44
Drug Control 407
Highway 7,667
Debt Service 4,835
86,484
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D. Interfund and Component Unit Receivables and Payables (Continued)

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds:
State and Federal Grants General 249,732
Debt Service 3,233
252,965
Governmental Library State and Federal Grants 20,000
Public Library State and Federal Grants 1,646
Solid Waste Public Improvement 396,812
Employee Benefits 139
396,951
Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds 671,562
Total Governmental Funds 15,931,7